
 Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

Thursday, April 20th, 2023 at 6:00PM 
Transportation Building 

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES - 1/30-2/28/2023

Date Description of Transaction Amount

CARD #3 - NATALIE ZUERCHER, ADMIN ASSISTANT
02/03/23 Office Supplies/GM Introduction Lunch 117.00$             
02/16/23 NWOTA Meeting 120.18$             
02/16/23 Board Meeting Dinner 49.52$               

286.70$             

CARD #4 - CATHY BOND, FINANCE SUPERVISOR

CARD # 5 - MARK STRICKER, OPERATIONS COORDINATOR
2/2/2023 Operations Supplies 209.26$             
2/3/2023 Operations Supplies 50.95$               

260.21$             

CARD #6 STEVEN FERRERA, MECHANIC
02/27/23 Operational supplies 138.99$             

138.99$             

Grand Total 685.90$             

DATE APPROVAL

19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



Coordinating Committee Hybrid Meeting 
April 14, 2023; 10:00 am—12:00 pm 

In-Person  
Tillamook County Transit District 

3600 Third Street, Suite A 
Tillamook, Oregon 97141 

Join Zoom Meeting: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259 

Call In: 1 253 215 8782 
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259 

Agenda 

10:00—
10:05a 1. Introductions Cynda Bruce 

10:05 – 
10:25a 

2. Funding Opportunities:
Carbon Reduction Program 
DEQ Diesel Emissions Grant 

Rye Baerg/ 
Sarah Lu Heath 

10:25—
10:35a 

3. Consent Calendar (Action Item)
March Meeting Minutes (Attached) 
Financial Report  
Ridership Tracking 

Cynda Bruce/All 

10:35—
11:05a 

3. NWOTA Standing Items
Marketing Update – Pending contract 
Website Update 

Sarah Lu Heath/ 
Trillium Staff 

11:05- 
11:30a 4. Review Transit Access Plan All 

11:30-
11:35p 5. Other Business All 

11:35a – 
12:00p 6. Member Updates All 

Attachments: 

March Meeting Minutes  
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking 

NWOTA meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with 
disabilities.  If a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

43

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259


NWOTA Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2023 

In attendance: 

Consent Calendar Reviewed: Minutes and financials were reviewed. Move to approve the consent 
calendar was made by Jeff Hazen and seconded by John Dreeszen, it passed unanimously.  

Marketing Update: NWOTA has received the PSA from TCTD and will forward to Trillium for signatures. 
A request for Trillium to attend the next meeting was made; walk through final website changes, launch 
marketing re-start.  

Website Update: The group reviewed updates made by Trillium. There were corrections needed by each 
agency. A follow-up communication will go to the group to respond individually.  

Token Transit: TCTD has Token Transit up and running on their system. Now Columbia County is the only 
agency in NWOTA not connected to the system. However, their ridership is considered quite different 
than coast-to-valley routes. Jeff recommends adding the NWConnector to Token Transit. There was 
conversation that with fares trending down to zero in some cases, the value proposition of the multi-day 
passes are diminishing. There was also conversation about the benefits of lowering fares.  

Service to Portland: The group discussed current options for getting to/from PDX and what options are 
available to connect directly to the airport might exist. SETD is awaiting decisions on their grant 
application on continuing an existing line to PDX. It was noted that leave times for airport buses are 
necessarily early.  

Other Business: It was noted that ODOT’s Carbon Reduction Program might be able to provide agencies 
with funding and the group will discuss more in April. Also, CCR stops two and three in the Transit Access 
Plan are now obsolete. Jeff Hazen noted that the proposed Habitat Conservation Plan will remove 
$90,000 in funding from SETD’s budget.  

Member Updates: 

SETD: Despite hiring new drivers, several departures continue to strain the system preventing additional 
services to return and/or be added. Clatsop County has a new Public Health Director and a partnership is 
underway to provide life-saving Narcan products to transit users.  

TCTD: Notes the importance of being educated on how to administer Narcan and is supportive of 
partnerships to ensure its availability for emergencies. Services changes north and south bound are 
growing despite bad weather conditions. It looks like removing zone fares and lowering prices have been 
beneficial for ridership.  

CCR: Focus has been on compliance and policy reviews. Despite restricting services to Portland, about 
75% of ridership has been retained, demonstrating the importance of connecting to the city.  

BAT: Contractor proposals are in for consideration. Ridership continues to grow. 

LCT: Annual budget and negotiation processes are underway.  

Meeting was adjourned at 11:55a.  

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



DATE: April 20, 2023 

TO: TCTD Board of Directors 

FROM:  Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 

Administration/Coordination 

• Hosted and attended April 14 NWOTA meeting.
• Attended March 23 ODOT open house in Tillamook to gather feedback on the draft 2024-2027

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). This is ODOT’s capital improvement
plan that is revised every three years to identify where they will invest federal and state
transportation dollars. This draft list of projects prioritizes accessibility; helping people safely
walk, bike, and take public transit; and system preservation. Comments on the draft program
will be accepted through April 28. Sample projects in Tillamook County include:

o Installing NEVI (National Electric Vehicle Infrastructure) fast charging stations at 50-
mile intervals between Washington and California state lines

o Complete design of NW Oregon lighting & enhanced intersection warning project to
reduce traffic incidents and increase safety

o Complete design to rehabilitate US 101 Port of Tillamook Bay Railroad bridge
o Dougherty Slough, Blum Lane, Prince bridge replacement
o Complete design to improve intersection safety on OR 6 at Wilson River Loop (East)
o Complete design to resurface OR 6 between milepost 4.4-9.0.
o Upgrade and install new roadside barrier on OR 6 from Tillamook to US 26

• Met with Ride Connection representatives (Washington County) to discuss coordination
efforts.

• Submitted dues to Oregon Transit Association to reestablish TCTD as a member. Checking
status of memberships with APTA and CTAA.

• Internal meetings to review policies and procedures.
• Held several internal FY 2023-2024 Annual Budget development meetings. Met with Board

Treasurer on April 14.

Planning & Development 

• Met with Kittelson & Associates, Inc. on March 23 to get an update of our Coordinated
Transportation and Human Services Plan. Work will restart on this plan once the contract is
extended and approved by the Board as part of agenda item # 15.

94



• Meeting internally to discuss details for May 26 start-up date for seasonal Pacific City Shuttle
service.

• Met with ODOT to discuss US 101 bus stop improvement project in Garibaldi.
• Provided feedback to ODOT PTD for their POINT NorthWest (Portland-Astoria) intercity bus

route. They are adjusting the schedule to improve on-time performance and to maximize
connections to other services, such as TCTD’s Route 3 service to Cannon Beach.

Grant Funding 

• Reviewing eligibility requirements for Tillamook Coast Visitors Association tourism signage
grant.

• Coordinating with City of Tillamook Police Department to gauge interest in partnering for the
FY 2023 Law Enforcement Agency De-Escalation Grant opportunity. De-escalation grants
provide funding to state and local agencies to establish internal de-escalation, implicit bias,
and duty to intervene training programs, purchase of VR/AR de-escalation training technology
to support and maintain officers’ de-escalation techniques.

• Vehicle procurement awarded to Schetky Northwest Sales, Inc., for manufacture of two,
Category E1 Dial-a-Ride vehicles. Delivery is expected in November 2023.

Facility/Property Management 
• Planning Solutions, Inc. submitted zoning clearance review permits to City of Tillamook for

Transit Center and administrative office renovations.
o Received approved zoning permits for both projects on April 6
o Next step: Submit building permit applications (along with approved zoning permits

and stamped plans) to Tillamook County Community Development Department
o Drafting RFP and contract language
o Developing project schedule

95



Tillamook County Transportation District 
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting 
Thursday, March 16, 2023 – 6:00PM  
Transportation Building 
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR  
Meeting Minute 

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Mary Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present 
TCTD Board of Directors  
Mary Johnson, Board Chair (Zoom) 
Gary Hanenkrat, Treasurer  
Linda Adler, Secretary  
Marty Holm, Director  
Jackie Edwards, Director  

TCTD Staff 
Brian Vitulli, General Manager 
Mike Reed, Operations Superintendent (Zoom) 
Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor  
Natalie Zuercher, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk 
Jules Hooter, Brokerage Manager 

Guest  
Arla Miller, ODOT  
Kathy Kleczek, NWTO 
San SunOwen, CARE Oregon 
Jim Heffernan, Citizen  

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: GM Vitulli announced the following
changes to the agenda:

Moving the General Managers Report to “State of the District Report”. 

Moving Consent Item #17 to an Action Item. 

5. Public & Guest Comments: None

6. Executive Session:  None

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT 

7. Financial Report: FS Bond gave the following up-to-date financial report:
Financials are split into two items pages #1-5 which is credit card statement and 
page #67.  

96



Did not do February Financials because of late invoicing and fuel report. Talked 
with Treasurer about this.  
 
58% through the fiscal year.  
 
Not received grant funding yet, hopeful it will be provided next month. Received 
formula but not grant reimbursement. Will help increase resources when 
received.  
 
Dir. Adler asked about Tillamook Lodging Tax. FS Bond replied just renovation 
of the Transit Center but no reimbursement yet.  
 
Dir. Adler asked about Pacific City payment. FS Bond said you will see this on 
next month’s financials. $25,000 for the summer, county pays for it. Dir. 
Hanenkrat added he believes it’s TLT funds. Invoice was sent out at last 
meeting. 
 
Tribe billing was late because we didn’t know how to get numbers for Route 
60/70X. It took us a while to get what’s needed.  
 
Payroll services are low.  
 
Total expenses for year is 33%. All invoicing as far as we know.  
 
Almost exactly hit resources with NWR (Northwest Rides).  
 
Above purchase on reimbursement, a little bit over budget. Has a true 
partnership with CARE Oregon because they replace that money. 
 
Have Umpqua Bank signature cards with me. Everyone here can sign cards 
tonight. Ryan, Umpqua Branch Manager apologized for the delay. This was just 
to remove Mike as IGM (Interim General Manager) and add Brian as GM 
(General Manager). There was miscommunication on this because of unknown 
process.  

 
8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Vitulli gave the following update: 

Little change from December to January on page #6. Operating costs per hour 
decreased which is good news. 
 
On page #7 you will see at the bottom that the percent change is trending in 
the right direction with PPO and CPH. PPH are increasing over 13%.  
 
Our big service change started in January. Hopefully we will start to see the 
impacts of this in the April report. Interested to see what these numbers look 
like.  
 

97



On page #8 ridership breakout for all services. Generally, ridership did improve. 
Route 2 is down from January 2022 to now. Dir. Adler added we reduced 
number of trips on Route 2. 

Dir. Holm asked if there’s a different way to view this information.GM Vitulli said 
these are good metrics to look at to track performance. Looking to present 
performance data using data visualization in the future. Historic trendlines will 
be easier to interpret.   

9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli gave the following update:
GM Vitulli said he was not as last week’s NWOTA meeting but the Alliance 
discussed potentially offering NWOTA passes to sell on Token Transit. 

10. NW Ride Brokerage: BM Hooter ceded her time in the place of agenda item #17 –
2023 CPCCO Delegation Agreement.

11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates:
Hosted and attended February NWOTA meeting. Met partners in 
person/virtually.  

Met partners of counsel to see where we are, it has been beneficial. 

Arla Miller has been working with us to help fund with bus stop improvements 
funded. Submit Letter of Support for that grant application.  

Met with project team for Kiwanda Corridor Project to see the work that is 
occurring in Pacific City. 

Coordinated with Amtrak liaison to ensure our January service changes were 
properly identified within their schedules.  

Looking to reengage with OTA. Coordinating with OTA president 

Attended ODOT’s Policy Coordinating Committee’s meeting on the Oregon 
Transportation Plan. This is the first update since 2006. A draft will be 
available soon. This plan will address drivers of change, such as climate 
change, social equity, a growing population over age 65, and new 
technologies.  

Trying to get up to speed with Transit Center renovations, met with planning 
solutions. They are currently updating specifications. Looking to get those 
submitted for permits by next week.  

Yamhill County Transit is updating their Coordinated Services Plan and 
reached out to us for surveying for benefits.  

Highway 6 Wilson River Corridor Study. Submitted comments on safety from 
driver input.  

98



Want to reengage with Kittleson & Associates on the District’s Coordinated 
Transportation Plan but it has not happened yet, hope to report on this next 
month.  
 
Article, rural America benefits from transit service, in Nebraska. Provided 
article. Similar to what we are facing here.  

 
12. Miscellaneous:  

GM Vitulli announced budget committee vacancies. On media and in the paper 
for recruitment. If we receive applications we will bring to you. FS Bond added 
that the meeting is in May, we usually only have one meeting. Natalie and I did 
research and it’s a committee member for every board member, so we need 7. 
Dir. Hanenkrat asked if we can have 5 from the public. FS Bond replied it has 
to do with appointing of board, it’s fine if we have 7 positions of governing board.  
 
GM Vitulli asked about Board Photos on the wall of Admin building. Would love 
to have all the photos out there so it looks complete.  Dir. Adler discussed the 
board getting pictures taken after board elections.  

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of February 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting  
14. Motion to Approve the January Financials and January Service Performance Report 
 
Motion by Dir. Adler to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Holm. 

 
Motion Passed 

By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,  
Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

ACTION ITEMS 
15.  Resolution #23-06: Authorizing the Transfer of Budget Appropriations Within the 

Operations -General Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 
 

Motion by Dir. Adler to Approve Resolution #23-06: Authorizing the Transfer of 
Budget Appropriations Within the Operations -General Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-
2023. Motion seconded by Dir. Johnson. 

GM Vitulli discussed how this doesn’t involve change in funds. It adds driver 
pool to dispatch pool with service change and improvements. Need more 
dispatchers to cover these improvements. The amended description shows 
change. There’s no net change to budget, we are just shifting resources. 

 
Motion Passed 

By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,  
Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

 
16. Resolution #23-07: Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Intergovernmental 

Agreement Administering the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Unified 
Certification Program 

99



GM Vitulli said he was contacted by ODOT (Oregon Department of 
Transportation) civil rights about re-signing an agreement. It’s something we 
have done in the past. Former agreement expired.  

 Motion by Dir. Holm to Approve Resolution #23-07:  Authorizing the General 
Manager to Execute Intergovernmental Agreement Administering the Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise Unified Certification Program. Motion Seconded by Dir. Adler.

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler, 

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 

17. Authorize the General Manager to Execute 2023 CPCCO Delegation Agreement.
GM Vitulli said yes, this is a motion to execute this agreement. San will be 
presenting this from Care Oregon. 

San SunOwen gave quick highlights on terms that have changed. Revision 
process is to catch all federal and state language changes. Catch all 
downstream requirements. Major changes were attachment of business 
associates agreement, may have happened last year. Were two documents 
but now should be one stand alone document. Gas prices are staying high, 
and members have said it’s not enough, included language to allow CCO and 
partnership to adjust mileage reimbursement for members. Has not been 
updated since the 90’s. OHA is also updating; those will be passed through. 
CCO has moved beyond transformation space into more compliance, 
regulatory oversight. Staffing support with NWR willing to negotiate adding 
staff. Added contract language with staffing models as well as compensation 
negotiations if needed.  

Dir. Holm asked about staffing levels. FS Bond added that page #16 outlines 
this. Having to respond to all audits, its cumbersome to do with staff doing 
other things. Dir. Holm asked if its a full or part time job. San SunOwen 
replied that it’s not spelled out, part of ongoing annual discussion. Will fit into 
compensation terms if staffing costs needs to be adjusted. Helping NWR 
respond to audits is main goal. Not interested in dictating full or part time. Will 
work with you and NWR and see workload. Dir. Holm added that it’s hard to 
recruit for that. Asked about repercussions if position isn’t filled. San 
SunOwen replied that it’s not about ability to fill position in terms proposed, its 
meeting compliance standards by CCO and OHA. We have had 9 months to 
fill Transportation Coordinator Position. We understand difficulty of filling 
positions. No negative repercussions in this agreement as of now. Will move 
forward in supporting.  

Dir. Hanenkrat asked about needing another person in NWR Brokerage. FS 
Bond replied yes, we need a part time. Terms of compliance that need to be 
met. Someone that understands requirements and can meet them. It is a 
trainable process, but we won’t hire someone that doesn’t have administrative 

100



experience. Dir. Holm said it seems to be a usual cause to have in the 
contract to mandate staffing. Asked about coverage and compensation. San 
SunOwen replied we would use this as any other staff that we have hired. For 
the most part, the costs exceed per member into comparison of what per 
month equates to. More service increases our costs. If there are any 
overages of revenue, we compensate NWR in full. If the services or rate are 
unused, we ask to split that 50/50. Current terms show these things. Nothing 
has changed we are just asking for staffing and being able to meet these 
requirements.  
 
FS Bond said page #51 shows this. Generally, we are sharing profit we aren’t 
losing profit. We have money in reserve, but we don’t run this program at a 
loss.  

  
Motion by Dir. Adler to Authorize the General Manager to Execute 2023 CPCCO 

Delegation Agreement. Motion Seconded by Dir. Edwards. 
 

Motion Passed 
By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,  

Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
18. Staff Comments/Concerns: 

 
General Manager Vitulli: No concerns from me. Been through two board meetings and 
starting to get settled in. Nice to be here. Staff and board have been huge support. 
Even though driver appreciation day is this weekend, the board also helps drive the 
district.   
 
Operations Superintendent Reed: No comments. 

 
Financial Supervisor Bond: Thank you for bridging gap between far and behind. So 
thankful for Brian he has been amazing. Great addition to staff who has so much 
experience. I am impressed with his transit experience. Thank the board for choosing 
Brian.  

 
Brokerage Manager Hooter: Thank you San SunOwen for being here. Thank you to 
everyone for keeping us rolling.  
 
Administrative Assistant Zuercher: Saturday, March 18th is Transit Driver Appreciation 
Day, we are thankful for our drivers not only them but all staff that runs the 
organization. Thankful for Brian being here.  

 
19. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:  

 
Dir. Holm: Did not file to run for another 4 years on the board, familiar with limitations 
on terms. 12 years is a good amount of time. There’s no reason I didn’t file other than 

101



enough time is enough time. Intelligent people in our community will make this work. 
We see several people interested. A good sign for services we are providing.  

Dir. Adler: Thank you Brian for being here if everyone’s happy you get more 
performance. Elections are closed off. Want to discuss appointments to the board. Dir. 
Edwards added that they can tune into meeting. People can write in; I think we should 
wait with election results. Dir. Hanenkrat said if they are interested, they can join 
meetings. Dir. Holm said you don’t know what’s going to happen. We need to let 
election occur as well as the democratic process. 

Dir. Hanenkrat: Thank you everyone, getting back to normal a little bit. 

Board Chair Johnson: No comments.  

Dir. Edwards: I am sorry Marty isn’t going to be here, I will not be here either for 
personal reasons. This is a tremendous district, good people in here. It means a lot to 
me. Glad Brian is here, he is a special person. Thanked everyone and Arla. 

Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:08pm. 

These minutes approved this 20th day of April 2023. 

ATTEST: 

     Mary Johnson, Board Chair      Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

102



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE 

TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT 

Authorizing the General Manager to 
Extend Deadline of the Services 
Contract with Kittelson & Associates 
for the Coordinated Human Services 
Transportation Plan 

) 
) 

) 

) 
) 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-08 

WHEREAS, the Tillamook County Transportation District ("District") has received 
a grant from the Oregon Department of Transportation ("ODOT") for a Coordinated Plan 
Update, which grant is memorialized in ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35137; and 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 21-23 the District Board of Directors authorized the 
General Manager to execute ODOT Grant Agreement No. 35137; and 

WHEREAS, in September 2021 the District conducted a Request for Proposal 
("RFP") process to select a consultant to develop a Coordinated Human Services 
Transportation Plan for the District; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the RFP, the District formed a panel to evaluate 
the proposals received based on the scoring criteria included in the RFP; and 

WHEREAS, the proposal from Kittelson & Associates ("Kittelson") scored higher 
than the other proposal received; and 

WHEREAS, by Res. 21-41, the District Board of Directors authorized the General
Manager to execute a services contract not to exceed $44,996 with Kittelson & 
Associates; and

WHEREAS, due to unforeseen circumstances, the contract period deadline of
December 31, 2022 has passed without completion of the Coordinated Human Services 
Transportation Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the District wishes to extend the contract deadline with Kittelson to 
allow for completion of the Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tillamook County Transportation 
District Board of Directors: 

that the Board authorizes the TCTD General Manager to extend the deadline 
of the services contract with Kittelson & Associates to assist the District with 
completing the Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan. 

INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of April 2023. 

ATTEST: 

_ _

By: _______
Mary Johnson, Board Chair

By: _______
Brian Vitulli, General Manager

103



Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Coordinated Human Services and Transportation Plans (Coordinated Transportation Plans, or CTPs) identify 

the need for, and availability of, transportation services for seniors and persons with disabilities; determine 

the gaps between needs and availability; and set a course of action for closing the gaps. Coordination 

enhances transportation access, minimizes duplication of services, and matches appropriate, cost-

effective transportation options with available resources. 

The Federal Transit Administration’s (FTA’s) Section 5310 program and Oregon’s Special Transportation Fund 

(STF) both fund projects and services that enhance the mobility of seniors and persons with disabilities. To 

be eligible for funding, projects and services are required to be “included in a locally developed, 

coordinated public transit human services transportation plan.” As the lead STF agency for Tillamook 

County, Tillamook County Transportation District (TCTD) determines how these funds are distributed to its 

own projects and services and to eligible subrecipients (non-profit or private for-profit providers). While 

§5310 funds are directed solely toward services open to the general public, STF funds can also be used for

client-only services and programs enhancing the mobility of low-income individuals.

The STF is being merged into Oregon’s Statewide Transportation Improvement Fund (STIF) effective July 

2023. However, if ODOT’s initial recommendations are implemented, client-only projects and services will 

need to be included in the CTP to be eligible to receive STIF funding. As the designated STIF Qualified Entity 

for Tillamook County, TCTD would continue to have the ability to distribute federal and state funds to itself 

and to eligible subrecipients to support the mobility of seniors and persons with disabilities. 

TCTD operates fixed-route, demand response, and intercity services and is an early adopter of trip-planning 

technology that allows riders to plan trips involving a combination of fixed-route and demand response 

services. TCTD also manages the NW Rides non-emergency medical transportation (NEMT) brokerage, 

which serves Columbia Pacific Coordinated Care Organization members in Clatsop, Columbia, and 

Tillamook Counties requiring transportation to medical appointments covered by their Oregon Health Plan 

insurance. Depending on the specific needs of a given trip, a ride could be provided by a public transit 

provider, a private or non-profit service provider, or a volunteer driver – or the member could be eligible for 

mileage reimbursement if they arrange their own transportation. Other sub-recipient organizations that 

TCTD partners with include Marie Mills Center (transportation services for intellectually and developmentally 

disabled individuals), CareOregon (reduced-cost bus passes for low-income individuals), and the Northwest 

Oregon Transportation Alliance (NWOTA, website and regional transit coordination). 

This project will develop a 5-year CTP compliant with federal and state requirements. The plan will 

incorporate TCTD and partner organization services in addressing Tillamook County’s human services 

transportation needs, and will identify opportunities to develop and strengthen partnerships. The plan’s 

recommendations will need to be coordinated with and complementary to TCTD’s Long-Range Transit 

851 SW 6th Avenue, Suite 600 

Portland, OR 97204 

P 503.228.5230  

April 14, 2023    Project# 26944 

To: Brian Vitulli, General Manager 

Tillamook County Transportation District 

From: Susie Wright, PE, PMP and Russ Doubleday 

RE: Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan 

104



April 14, 2023 Page 2 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan  Scope of Work 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

Development Plan (TDP) and STIF Plan. As the lead consultant for both of those plans, as well as TCTD’s 

current CTP, Kittelson is already well-acquainted with TCTD’s services and strategic direction. 

The following summarizes our tasks to complete the work along with the tasks that have already been 

completed to date.  

Task 1: Project Initiation and Management 

This task started with a kickoff meeting with TCTD staff to confirm project roles, responsibilities, and 

expectations, which will subsequently be documented in a project management plan. We will work with 

TCTD to confirm a timeline for meetings throughout the course of the project. 

Our project manager, Susan Wright, will hold monthly phone check-ins (biweekly when needed) with TCTD 

staff to review project progress. We will also prepare monthly progress reports to accompany invoices and 

for TCTD staff use in updating TCTD’s Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) and Board about project 

progress. The “Management Approach” section that follows describes our approach to project 

management and quality assurance. 

Task 2: Existing Conditions 

We will prepare an inventory survey for public, non profit, and private for-profit human services 

transportation providers serving Tillamook County and neighboring counties. This survey will include 

questions about rider characteristics and needs, operating statistics, vehicle inventory, client type, trip 

costs, and ways to enhance coordination and collaboration. 

Relatively recent vehicle inventories for public transportation providers are available from the National 

Transit Database, while TCTD will have cost and usage information through its role in managing the NW 

Rides program. TCTD will provide the final list of service providers to be surveyed. Potential survey recipients 

include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following: 

Public 

◼ TCTD

◼ Columbia County Rider

◼ Lincoln County TD

◼ Sunset Empire TD

Non-Profit 

◼ Marie Mills Center

Private For-Profit 

◼ AAA Ride Assist

◼ Columbia Medical Transportation

◼ K&M Medivan

◼ Kenny “G” Cab

◼ Medix Ambulance

◼ Metro West Ambulance

◼ Mountain Retreat Secured Transport

◼ Pacific Taxi Services

◼ Ryan’s Transportation Services

◼ Secure Transportation of Oregon

◼ Wapato Shores Accessible Transportation

◼ Willamette Valley Transport

Our teaming partner MIG | APG used Census and other available data to analyze transportation 

disadvantaged populations and other demographic characteristics of Tillamook County.  

105



April 14, 2023 Page 3 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan   Scope of Work 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.    

Task 3: Evaluation of Former Plan Recommendations 

We prepared a summary and will work with TCTD staff to evaluate and report on the progress made to 

date in implementing the recommendations in the 2016 CTP, as well as recommendations related to 

services for seniors and people with disabilities in any other more current TCTD plans, including evaluating 

whether recommendations are still relevant given changes that have occurred in the last five years. 

Task 4: Public Outreach 

We will conduct interviews with up to 8 stakeholders to be agreed upon with TCTD in advance. Interviews 

will include representatives of the following groups required by the §5310 grant program: seniors; persons 

with disabilities; public, non-profit, and private for-profit transportation and human services providers; and 

other members of the public. TAC members will be included in the stakeholder group. Interviews will 

generally be conducted virtually or by phone. The interviews are expected to address human services 

transportation needs from the perspectives of the various stakeholders, customer service perceptions, and 

thoughts on how mobility management techniques could be applied to improve general and human 

services transportation in Tillamook County. We will prepare a draft interview template for TCTD approval 

prior to finalizing the template and conducting the interviews. 

We will prepare a memo summarizing the interview results and presenting draft goals and objectives for the 

CTP. This memo will serve as the basis for a stakeholder workshop where the results will be presented and 

stakeholders given the opportunity to provide additional comment, suggest goals and objectives for the 

CTP, and interact with each other. We will document the feedback received during the workshop, along 

with the names and organizations of the participants. 

Task 5: Identify Transportation Needs and Strategies 

and Prepare Implementation Plan 

The purpose of the Implementation Plan is to translate the customer needs, and potential strategies to 

meet these needs, into discreet activities to enact efficient and effective service, facility, and 

administrative changes. Drawing from the input received from the stakeholder workshop, TCTD staff, and 

TAC, we will finalize the CTP’s goals and objectives. Drawing from the findings of Tasks 2–4, we will 

document human services transportation needs in Tillamook County, including identifying currently 

underserved groups. We will develop strategies and projects to address these needs, which could include 

changes to services, coordination, dispatching, facilities, vehicles, maintenance, training, administration, 

technology, and procurement, as well as mobility management techniques. Each strategy will be assessed 

relative to how well it supports the CTP goals and objectives, relationship to projects in the TDP, cost 

requirements or potential savings, ease of implementation, and group(s) served. 

Finally, we will develop a recommended implementation plan that will include a high/medium/low 

prioritized list of strategies and projects, a timeline for implementation, and funding sources for the high-

priority projects. Drawing from our national transit performance-measurement expertise, we will also 

recommend performance measures and a monitoring methodology that will allow TCTD staff to readily 

monitor progress toward implementing the plan and to quantify the plan’s outcomes. 

106



April 14, 2023 Page 4 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan   Work Plan and Schedule 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.    

Task 6: Prepare Draft Updated Coordinated Human 

Services Transportation Plan 

We will prepare a draft CTP, consistent with federal and state requirements, that presents the 

recommended implementation plan and documents the input received and process used to develop the 

plan. An administrative draft plan will be provided to TCTD staff for review and approval, prior to issuing a 

public draft plan for review and comment by stakeholders and the general public. We will present the draft 

plan to the TAC at a workshop in November and to the TCTD Board at a public hearing in early December. 

Comments received from the TAC, Board, stakeholders, and general public at these and earlier meetings 

will be recorded and documented in an appendix to the final plan to be developed during Task 7. 

Task 7: Final Presentations 

The draft plan will be revised to incorporate direction received from the TCTD Board and staff and to 

document the public comments received on the draft plan. We will present the final plan to the TAC and 

TCTD Board at their respective meetings. 

Task 8: Final Deliverables 

We will provide TCTD with an electronic copy suitable for reproduction, electronic copies of all 

presentations, and electronic versions of all project deliverables, including data and support files. 

WORK PLAN AND SCHEDULE 

This section identifies the work activities, milestones, and deliverables for each task, along with the overall 

project schedule. 

Task 1: Project Initiation and Management 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Kickoff meeting with TCTD staff (completed) 

▪ Update project management plan, including the roles of project team members and TCTD staff, 

and listing project meeting dates (mid-May) 

▪ TCTD to confirm Task 2 survey recipients (late May) 

▪ TCTD to invite and confirm Task 4 stakeholder group members (July) 

▪ Check-in calls (monthly throughout the project, biweekly as needed) 

▪ Written progress updates (monthly throughout the project) 

Deliverables 

▪ Updated project management plan, including meeting schedule  

▪ Monthly progress reports 

107



April 14, 2023 Page 5 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan   Work Plan and Schedule 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc.    

Task 2: Existing Conditions 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Finalize draft inventory survey (mid-May) 

▪ Review progress on relevant plans with TCTD staff (late May) 

▪ Analyze TCTD dial-a-ride and NW Rides ride requests for trips with an origin and/or destination in 

Tillamook County (late May) 

▪ Review inventory survey with TCTD staff; combined with Task 3 & 4 meetings (early June) 

▪ Distribute survey and follow up with recipients as needed, combine with Task 4 stakeholder 

interviews when the recipient is also part of the stakeholder group (early June) 

▪ Summarize survey results (June) 

Deliverables 

▪ Technical Memorandum #1: Summary of Relevant Plans (late May) 

▪ Draft (mid-May) and final (late May) inventory survey 

▪ Technical Memorandum #3: Inventory Survey Summary (late June) 

Task 3: Evaluation of Former Plan Recommendations 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Review 2016 CDP implementation progress with TCTD staff; combined with Task 2 & 4 meetings 

(early June) 

Deliverables 

▪ Meeting notes (within one week of meeting) 

Task 4: Public Outreach 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Develop draft interview template (June) 

▪ Review interview template with TCTD staff; combined with Task 2 & 3 meetings (June) 

▪ Schedule interviews (late June) 

▪ Conduct interviews (early July) 

▪ Summarize interviews (July) 

▪ Develop draft CTP goals and objectives (late July) 

▪ Develop stakeholder workshop agenda and draft presentation (to TCTD 2 weeks prior to workshop, 

to participants 1 week prior to workshop) 

▪ Conduct in-person stakeholder workshop (July) 

▪ Summarize workshop participation and responses (late July) 

Deliverables 

▪ Interview template (June) 

▪ Technical Memorandum #4: Stakeholder Interview Summary (late July) 

108



April 14, 2023 Page 6 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan  Work Plan and Schedule 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

▪ Technical Memorandum #5: Draft Goals and Objectives (late July)

▪ Stakeholder workshop agenda and draft presentation (to TCTD 2 weeks prior to workshop, to

participants 1 week prior to workshop)

▪ Workshop notes, including participant list and summary of responses received (late July)

Task 5: Identify Transportation Needs and Strategies and Prepare 

Implementation Plan 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Finalize the CTP goals and objectives (August)

▪ Develop strategies and projects (August)

▪ Develop performance measures and monitoring methodology (August)

▪ Document human services transportation needs (late August)

▪ Prepare draft implementation plan (late August)

Deliverables 

▪ Updated Technical Memorandum #5: Goals and Objectives (August)

▪ Technical Memorandum #6: Human Services Transportation Needs (late August)

▪ Technical Memorandum #7: Implementation Plan (late August)

Task 6: Prepare Draft Updated Coordinated Human Services 

Transportation Plan 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Prepare administrative draft CTP and draft presentation for the TAC and Board (late September to

early October)

▪ Prepare public draft CTP and final presentation slides (within 7 days of receipt of TCTD staff

comments)

▪ Present the draft plan at a virtual TAC workshop and present virtually at a Board meeting

(October)

▪ Document comments received on the draft plan from the TAC, Board, stakeholders, and general

public (late October)

Deliverables 

▪ Administrative draft CTP and draft presentation slides (early October)

▪ Public draft CTP and final presentation slides (within 7 days of receipt of TCTD staff comments)

▪ Meeting notes documenting comments received on the draft plan (late October)

Task 7: Final Presentation 

Work Activities and Milestones 

▪ Prepare adoption draft CTP (November)

109



April 14, 2023 Page 7 

Tillamook County Transportation District Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan  Work Plan and Schedule 

Kittelson & Associates, Inc. 

▪ Prepare draft (2 weeks prior to June TAC/Board meetings) and final (within 7 days of receipt of

TCTD staff comments) presentations on the adoption draft CTP

▪ Present the adoption draft CTP virtually at the November TAC meeting and an early November

board meeting

Deliverables 

▪ Adoption draft CTP (early November)

▪ Draft (2 weeks prior to late November TAC/board meetings) and final (within 7 days of receipt of

TCTD staff comments) presentations slides

Task 8: Final Deliverables 

Deliverables 

▪ Electronic copy of the adopted CTP suitable for reproduction

▪ Electronic files of all presentations and project deliverables, including data and support files

110



111



112



113



     Tillamook County Transportation District 
 Budget Committee Application 

Name of Applicant: 

Street Address: 

Mailing Address: 

Home Phone:    Cell Phone: 

Email Address: 

Present employment (If not presently employed, enter “N/A” or “Retired”) 

Please describe your prior experience with organizational budgets and/or financials: 

Prior board service experience 

Other community affiliations 

Are you knowledgeable about the public transportation needs of resident or employees 
located within or traveling to and from Tillamook County?  Yes  No 

If yes, please describe: 

Why do you wish to serve on the TCTD Budget Committee? 

The TCTD Budget Committee is required to meet to evaluate and approve an annual budget in 
accordance with Oregon's Public Budget Law. Your appointment to the committee is for a 

three-year term and will generally include one or more meetings per calendar year. 

114


	April Board Packet Cover
	FebruaryFinancials
	FebVisa1_Redacted
	FebVisa2_Redacted
	FebVisa3_Redacted
	FebVisa4_Redacted
	FebVisaReport
	Feb FM Report
	FM 2.2023

	MarchFinancials
	MarchVisa1_Redacted
	MarchVisa2_Redacted
	MarchVisa3_Redacted
	MarchVisa4_Redacted
	MarchFinancialBreakdown
	FredMeyerMarch
	FebServiceReport
	FebPerformanceReport
	2023.04.14 NWOTA Meeting Agenda
	2023.03.10 NWOTA Minutes
	 NWOTA
	GM Report_April 2023
	3.16.2023 Minutes DRAFT
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Mike Reed, Operations Superintendent (Zoom)
	Guest
	Arla Miller, ODOT
	Kathy Kleczek, NWTO
	San SunOwen, CARE Oregon
	Jim Heffernan, Citizen
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda: GM Vitulli announced the following changes to the agenda:
	Moving the General Managers Report to “State of the District Report”.
	Moving Consent Item #17 to an Action Item.
	5. Public & Guest Comments: None
	6. Executive Session:  None
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	7. Financial Report: FS Bond gave the following up-to-date financial report:
	Financials are split into two items pages #1-5 which is credit card statement and page #67.
	Did not do February Financials because of late invoicing and fuel report. Talked with Treasurer about this.
	58% through the fiscal year.
	Not received grant funding yet, hopeful it will be provided next month. Received formula but not grant reimbursement. Will help increase resources when received.
	Dir. Adler asked about Tillamook Lodging Tax. FS Bond replied just renovation of the Transit Center but no reimbursement yet.
	Dir. Adler asked about Pacific City payment. FS Bond said you will see this on next month’s financials. $25,000 for the summer, county pays for it. Dir. Hanenkrat added he believes it’s TLT funds. Invoice was sent out at last meeting.
	Tribe billing was late because we didn’t know how to get numbers for Route 60/70X. It took us a while to get what’s needed.
	Payroll services are low.
	Total expenses for year is 33%. All invoicing as far as we know.
	Almost exactly hit resources with NWR (Northwest Rides).
	Above purchase on reimbursement, a little bit over budget. Has a true partnership with CARE Oregon because they replace that money.
	Have Umpqua Bank signature cards with me. Everyone here can sign cards tonight. Ryan, Umpqua Branch Manager apologized for the delay. This was just to remove Mike as IGM (Interim General Manager) and add Brian as GM (General Manager). There was miscom...
	8. Service Measure Performance Report: GM Vitulli gave the following update:
	Little change from December to January on page #6. Operating costs per hour decreased which is good news.
	On page #7 you will see at the bottom that the percent change is trending in the right direction with PPO and CPH. PPH are increasing over 13%.
	Our big service change started in January. Hopefully we will start to see the impacts of this in the April report. Interested to see what these numbers look like.
	On page #8 ridership breakout for all services. Generally, ridership did improve. Route 2 is down from January 2022 to now. Dir. Adler added we reduced number of trips on Route 2.
	Dir. Holm asked if there’s a different way to view this information.GM Vitulli said these are good metrics to look at to track performance. Looking to present performance data using data visualization in the future. Historic trendlines will be easier ...
	9. Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: GM Vitulli gave the following update:
	GM Vitulli said he was not as last week’s NWOTA meeting but the Alliance discussed potentially offering NWOTA passes to sell on Token Transit.
	10. NW Ride Brokerage: BM Hooter ceded her time in the place of agenda item #17 – 2023 CPCCO Delegation Agreement.
	11. General Manager Report: GM Vitulli provided the following updates:
	12. Miscellaneous:
	GM Vitulli announced budget committee vacancies. On media and in the paper for recruitment. If we receive applications we will bring to you. FS Bond added that the meeting is in May, we usually only have one meeting. Natalie and I did research and it’...
	GM Vitulli asked about Board Photos on the wall of Admin building. Would love to have all the photos out there so it looks complete.  Dir. Adler discussed the board getting pictures taken after board elections.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	Motion by Dir. Adler to approve Consent Calendar. Motion Seconded by Dir. Holm.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	ACTION ITEMS
	15.  Resolution #23-06: Authorizing the Transfer of Budget Appropriations Within the Operations -General Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023
	Motion by Dir. Adler to Approve Resolution #23-06: Authorizing the Transfer of Budget Appropriations Within the Operations -General Fund for Fiscal Year 2022-2023. Motion seconded by Dir. Johnson.
	GM Vitulli discussed how this doesn’t involve change in funds. It adds driver pool to dispatch pool with service change and improvements. Need more dispatchers to cover these improvements. The amended description shows change. There’s no net change to...
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	Motion by Dir. Adler to Authorize the General Manager to Execute 2023 CPCCO Delegation Agreement. Motion Seconded by Dir. Edwards.
	Motion Passed
	By Directors Hanenkrat, Adler,
	Holm, Edwards, and Board Chair Johnson.
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	18. Staff Comments/Concerns:
	General Manager Vitulli: No concerns from me. Been through two board meetings and starting to get settled in. Nice to be here. Staff and board have been huge support. Even though driver appreciation day is this weekend, the board also helps drive the ...
	Operations Superintendent Reed: No comments.
	Financial Supervisor Bond: Thank you for bridging gap between far and behind. So thankful for Brian he has been amazing. Great addition to staff who has so much experience. I am impressed with his transit experience. Thank the board for choosing Brian.
	Brokerage Manager Hooter: Thank you San SunOwen for being here. Thank you to everyone for keeping us rolling.
	Administrative Assistant Zuercher: Saturday, March 18th is Transit Driver Appreciation Day, we are thankful for our drivers not only them but all staff that runs the organization. Thankful for Brian being here.
	19. Board of Directors Comments/Concerns:
	Dir. Holm: Did not file to run for another 4 years on the board, familiar with limitations on terms. 12 years is a good amount of time. There’s no reason I didn’t file other than enough time is enough time. Intelligent people in our community will mak...
	Dir. Adler: Thank you Brian for being here if everyone’s happy you get more performance. Elections are closed off. Want to discuss appointments to the board. Dir. Edwards added that they can tune into meeting. People can write in; I think we should wa...
	Dir. Hanenkrat: Thank you everyone, getting back to normal a little bit.
	Board Chair Johnson: No comments.
	Dir. Edwards: I am sorry Marty isn’t going to be here, I will not be here either for personal reasons. This is a tremendous district, good people in here. It means a lot to me. Glad Brian is here, he is a special person. Thanked everyone and Arla.
	Adjournment: Board Chair Johnson adjourned the meeting at 7:08pm.
	These minutes approved this 20th day of April 2023.
	ATTEST:

	21-41 Services Contract Kittelson Coord Transportation Plan
	26944 Scope 20230414
	ScopeofWork
	JHApplication_Redacted
	TCTD-Budget-Committee-ApplicationHELLNERREDACTED

	Name: Tyler L. Hellner
	Street Address: 
	Mailing Address: 
	Home Phone: 
	Cell Phone: 
	Email: 
	Present Employment: Bus operator with Tillamook County Transportation District 
	Prior Experience: I had been self employed general contracting and 75% of it was budgeting my working capital to gain materials for different stages of the multiple jobs that would be on the books along which is also subjected but not limited to payroll, vendors, and expenses. 
	Prior Board Service: N\A been involved with city and county board meetings. I have never served on a board. 
	Community Affiliations: Volunteer at habitat for humanity with construction of homes.
	Group12: Choice1
	Describe: With being an bus operated for over a year I have gathered information from the public and operators that could play a helpful role in the committee 
	Wish to Serve: I believe in bettering the community and believe in growth of the transit system. I really enjoy being a public servant to better more  of a whole. 


